






































From:Vandiver, Renee P

To:Stovall, Jessica E

Cc:Oden, Kristy Oneal

Subject:Promotion/Tenure Policy Revisions

Date:Monday, January 30, 2023 9:57:08 AM
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On behalf of SGEC Chair Kristy Oden, I wish to inform you that via e-business this date, the Shared

Governance Executive Committee considered the enclosed proposal from the Council of Academic

Deans for amendments to the Faculty Senate proposed revisions to the promotion and tenure

policies.  The SGEC voted unanimously to return this proposal to the Faculty Senate for review. 

Therefore, please inform Dr. Oden of the outcome of this review with a copy to me.  Thank you.

 

 

From: Baird, Sara Lynn <sbaird@una.edu> 

Sent:  Wednesday, January 18, 2023 12:36 PM

To: Vandiver, Renee P <rpvandiver@una.edu>

Subject: Re: Next COAD Meeting: P/T Policy Revisions

 

Hi Renée,

 

Attached is the word doc and pdf reflecting the document that came to us and the COAD changes. 

Note that the original document text is in red and dean’s edits are in blue. Word and pdf attached.

 

 

Sara Lynn

 Dr. Sara Lynn Baird | 2.75 65.4288

Dean

Professor, Music

College of Arts, Sciences, & Engineering (CASE)

Music

UNA Box 5021 |2501 Cramer Way, Room 217 • Florence, AL 35632

https://www.una.edu/artsandsciences/

 





3. Effectiveness in Rendering Service. The candidate is evaluated upon evidence such as 
recognition in the professional field; consultant services of high professional quality in 
business, cultural, educational, governmental, and industrial endeavors; activities in 



implemented through guidance provided by the department chair to the faculty member 
during the annual evaluation and at other appropriate times. It is the responsibility of the 
deans and the Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs to monitor equity 
of expectations across the University. 

 
For non-teaching faculty, effectiveness in role as library or educational technology 

services faculty is evaluated instead of teaching effectiveness. The following criteria and 
procedures below do not apply to Kilby School and the Department of Military Science 
because of the special nature of those departments. Faculty from the Department of Military 
Science will not serve on promotion committees. 

 
Minimum Qualifications by Rank (Also refer to Appendix 2.D/2.D.1, Timeline for Promotion 
and/or Tenure) 

 
1. Instructor/Lecturer/Senior Lecturer/Visiting (Open Rank) Professor. Appointment to this 

rank typically requires possession of a master's or higher degree in the field of assignment. 



maintained by the Office of the Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic 
Affairs and may be used in lieu of offer letters written prior to the 2017-18 academic year 
that do not include this information. An Assistant Professor must serve a minimum of two 
years at UNA prior to the review of the promotion and/or tenure application in the third 
academic year of employment at UNA. 

 
4. Professor. Appointment, promotion to this rank, and/or tenure, requires possession of a 

doctoral degree or terminal degree appropriate in the field of assignment as determined by 
university �S�R�O�L�F�\�����,�Q���D�G�G�L�W�L�R�Q�����D���P�L�Q�L�P�X�P���R�I���������\�H�D�U�V�¶���D�S�S�U�R�S�U�L�D�W�H���F�X�P�X�O�D�W�L�Y�H���H�[�S�H�U�L�H�Q�F�H��
specific to the discipline is also required, at least six of which must be in rank as associate 
professor. Effective for new hires beginning fall 2012, promotion to this rank requires that 
three of the twelve years of cumulative experience shall be earned at UNA. In addition, 
the applicant shall have established a sustained and consistent record of excellence in 
teaching; research, scholarship, or other creative activities; and service. 

 
Promotion to Professor: Faculty will be eligible to be evaluated for promotion no earlier 
than the sixth year of service as an Associate Professor at UNA. Faculty employment 
contracts may, upon approval by the dean and the Provost and Executive Vice President 
for Academic Affairs, include credit for up to three years of service at the associate 
professor level or higher at other institutions toward the six years of service. The credit 
given must be determined at the time of hiring and included in the employment letter. The 
relevant documentation of years of probationary service will be maintained by the Office 
of the Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and may be used in lieu 
of offer letters written prior to the 2017-18 academic year that do not include this 
information. An Associate Professor must serve a minimum of two years at UNA prior to 
the review of the promotion application in the third academic year of employment at 
UNA. 

 
Tenure for Full Professors: Faculty appointed as full  professors will  apply for tenure after 
completing at least two years of service at UNA. 

 

Exceptions: In rare and unique circumstances, a petition by the department chair 



 

1. A narrative in which the faculty member indicates alignment with departmental guidelines 
and expectations. Additionally, the faculty member should discuss the degree of merit or 
level of prestige or quality of work specific to their area in order to demonstrate quality of 
teaching/effectiveness in role as library or educational technology services faculty, 
research, scholarship, and other creative activities, and service as consistent with 
departmental guidelines for university-wide committee members who may be unfamiliar 
with the field (maximum of 15 pages). 

 

2. Current Resume or Vita submitted by the faculty member via the online database that UNA has 
established for this purpose 

 
3. Faculty Qualifications Report pulled into application via the online database that UNA 

has established for this purpose 
 

a. Education (Institution, major, minor, degrees awarded, and dates degrees were 
awarded) 

b. College/university teaching or library/educational technology services 
experience as appropriate to field (include position and dates) 

c. Other teaching or library/educational technology services experience (describe 
and include dates) 

d. Other related experience (describe and include dates) 

 
 

2.4. Supporting information for the following items, as outlined in section 2.6.1, submitted via the 
online database that UNA has established for this purpose 

 

a. Effectiveness in Teaching/Effectiveness in Role as Library or 
Educational Technology Services Faculty 

b. Effectiveness in Research, Scholarship, and Other Creative Activities 
c. Effectiveness in Rendering Service 
d. Any other relevant information pertaining to the college or department 

 

The Third-Year Review process will consist of reviews by the department's tenured faculty, 
the department chair, and the Dean's Office. The department chair shall convene a third-year 
review committee, consisting of all tenured faculty. The department chair or designee will 





and portfolio submission will be recommended by the dean to the Provost and Executive Vice 
President for Academic Affairs. 

 
For faculty seeking promotion and/or tenure, an electronic portfolio will be submitted 

by October 1 of the final academic year of probationary status via the online database that 
UNA has established for this purpose. For faculty seeking promotion only, an electronic 
portfolio that provides evidence of accomplishments will be submitted by October 1 via the 
online database that UNA has established for this purpose. Candidates can withdraw their 
application at any time in the process with the understanding that a final decision will not be 
made for promotion and/or tenure. This choice by the candidate may have an impact on 
continuation of employment if  the decision to withdraw a promotion and/or tenure application 
is in the final academic year of probationary status (See Section 2.6.4). The timeline for 
reviewing promotion and/or tenure materials can be found in Appendix 2.D/2.D.1. 

 

The electronic portfolio will  contain the information set forth by the University, plus 
the college and/or departmental guidelines. The information will be housed on the online 
database that UNA has established for this purpose and will be accessible only by the 
administration and committee members involved in the promotion and/or tenure review 
process. 

 
1.  Application for Promotion and/or Tenure (Refer to Appendix 2.F) 
1. A narrative in which the faculty member indicates alignment with departmental 

guidelines and expectations. Additionally, the faculty member should discuss the 
degree of merit or level of prestige or quality of work specific to his/hertheir area in 
order to demonstrate quality of teaching/effectiveness in role as library or educational 
technology services faculty, research, scholarship, and other creative activities, and 
service as consistent with departmental guidelinesscholarship for university-wide 
committee members who may be unfamiliar with the field (maximum of 15 pages)., 

 

1. as well as indicates which of the areas in item 5 should be weighed more heavily or less 
heavily than others (maximum of 15 pages) 

 

2. Current Resume or Vita submitted by the faculty member via the online database that 
UNA has established for this purpose 

 
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
 

4. Supporting information for the following items, as outlined in as

 



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

Responsibility of the Peer Promotion and/or Tenure Committee 

When a faculty member applies for promotion and/or tenure, it is the responsibility of 
the department chair to form a peer promotion and/or tenure committee and to supply the 
names of the committee members to the Provost and Executive Vice President for Academic 
Affairs via promotions@una.edu by September 1. The University Librarian serves the 
function of chair and dean in Collier Library and Information Services. The Executive 
Director serves the function of chair and dean in Educational Technology Services. The 
department chair shall convene a peer promotion and/or tenure committee, consisting of all 
tenured faculty not applying for promotion in the department. No committee shall consist of 

less than five tenured faculty. When that number is not possible at the departmental level, the 
chair will complete the committee membership from among all tenured faculty not applying 
for promotion from other departments in the college or in a related discipline. The 
department chair or designee will supervise the election of a committee chairperson. After all 
members have reviewed each portfolio, the committee will meet en masse (convened in 
person) to discuss each portfolio and vote on each candidate by reported numerical secret 
ballot. It is the responsibility of the peer promotion and/or tenure committee chair to complete 
an evaluation form (Appendix 2.G) on each candidate, with a copy to each committee 
member, that addresses strengths and weaknesses in relation to the university, college, and 
departmental criteria established for promotion and/or tenure and to recommend for or against 
the granting of promotion and/or tenure. By November 15, the peer promotion and/or tenure 
committee chair will submit the evaluation form via the online database that UNA has 
established for this purpose. The evalua�W�L�R�Q���I�R�U�P�����F�R�P�S�R�V�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���F�D�Q�G�L�G�D�W�H�¶�V���S�H�H�U��
promotion and/or tenure committee chair and copied to each committee member, should 
provide information directly addressing the degree of merit or level of prestige or quality of 
scholarly outlets cited within th�H���F�D�Q�G�L�G�D�W�H�¶�V���S�R�U�W�I�R�O�L�R�����7�K�H�V�H���V�K�R�X�O�G���L�Q�F�O�X�G�H���G�L�V�F�L�S�O�L�Q�H��
specific accomplishments relative to effectiveness in teaching; research, scholarship, and 
other creative activities; and service. The final evaluation form for each candidate will be 
approved by the peer promotion and/or tenure committee prior to its submission via the online 
database that UNA has established for this purpose. Each candidate will have access to the 
�F�R�P�P�L�W�W�H�H�¶�V final form through the online database that UNA has established for this purpose. 
Members of the peer promotion and/or tenure committee participate with the understanding 
that all matters related to their deliberations remain confidential. 

 
Responsibility of the Department Chair 

 
The department chair will evaluate the portfolios of the candidates in his or hertheir 

department and complete the evaluation form (Appendix 2.G) on each candidate that 
addresses strengths and weaknesses in relation to the university, college, and departmental 
criteria established for advancement in rank and recommend for or against the granting of 
ing of 



Library and Information Services. The Executive Director serves the function of chair and 
dean in Educational Technology Services. 

 
Responsibility of the College Dean 

 
The dean will  review the candidate portfolios in his/hertheir college and the materials 

presented by the peer promotion and/or tenure committee and the department chair, complete 
the evaluation form (Appendix 2.G) 



Responsibility of the University-Wide Promotion and Tenure Portfolio Review Committee 
 

The University-Wide Promotion and Tenure Portfolio Review Committee will review 
the materials presented by the peer promotion and/or tenure committee, the department chair, 
and dean, and the committee chair will complete the evaluation form (Appendix 2.G) on each 
candidate that addresses strengths and weaknesses in relation to the university, college, and 
departmental criteria established for promotion and/or tenure as reported on the numerical 
secret ballot vote to recommend for or against the granting of promotion and/or tenure and, by 
March 15, submit the evaluation form via the online database that UNA has established for 
this purpose. This committee is to be drawn from all 



notify the committee of the availability of the portfolios via the online database that UNA has 
established for this purpose, and the committee will begin the review process. Every member 
of the committee will review each portfolio submitted, regardless of recommendation and 
concurrence at previous stages in the process. After all members have reviewed each 
portfolio, the committee will meet en masse (convened in person) to discuss each portfolio 
and vote on each candidate by reported numerical secret ballot. 

 

The committee will perform a year-end process/procedures review and prepare a 



evaluate the �F�D�Q�G�L�G�D�W�H�¶�V portfolio and, by February 1, will  submit his or hertheir evaluation form 
via the online database that UNA has established for this purpose. By April 15, the Provost and 
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs will review each candidate, and the 
recommendations from the peer promotion and/or tenure committee, the dean, and the 
University-Wide Promotion and Tenure Portfolio Review Committee, and will  recommend for or 
against the granting of promotion and/or tenure to the President. 

 
Evaluation Results 

 
At each stage of the process, the evaluation form will be submitted via the online 

database that UNA has established for this purpose and made available to the candidate. The 
candidate may offer a rebuttal, if  desired, via the online database that UNA has established for 
this purpose. The rebuttal(s), if any, will become a part of the application materials. 

 



MEMORANDUM  

 

TO:    Faculty Senate 

FROM:   Faculty Senate Executive Committee 

RE:    Proposal for Faculty Handbook Revisions:  Student Ratings/Evaluations 

DATE:   January 23, 2023 

 

I



 
3.16 











